

# Navigating CANVaS 2.0 Basics of Using the Site for Raters/Case Managers

Creating User Accounts, Searching for and Creating Child Accounts, and Completing and Printing an Assessment



Virginia Office of Children's Services June 2019



# Navigating CANVaS 2.0 Basics of Using the Site for Case Managers/Raters

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ΤΟΡΙΟ	PAGE NUMBER
INTRODUCTION	3
FIRST STEPS!	3
NEW CANVAS USER ACCOUNT CREATION	4
CHILD SEARCH	7
ADDING A NEW CHILD/CAREGIVERS	9
ADDING AN ASSESSMENT	13
GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT RATING	17
RATING MODULES	17
RATING CAREGIVERS	19
IMPORTANT FOR DSS RATERS	20
IMPORTANT FOR ALL RATERS Rating the Correct Caregiver	20
RATING OLDER YOUTH	21
CLOSING AN ASSESSMENT	21
PRINTING AN ASSESSMENT REPORT	23
REPORTS	24
OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION	24
GENERAL QUESTIONS SECTION	26
CASE MANAGER ACCOUNT FORM	27

# Navigating CANVaS 2.0 Basics of Using the Site for Case Managers

## Creating User Accounts, Searching for and Creating Child Accounts, and Completing and Printing an Assessment

## **INTRODUCTION**

CANVaS 2.0 is the online application of the Virginia Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment, the mandatory uniform assessment required for all children, youth and families served by the Children's Services Act (CSA). This document provides basic information for case managers on how to create an account and navigate the CANVaS 2.0 website. Case managers are staff with the local Department of Social Services (DSS), Court Services Unit (CSU), Community Services Boards (CSBs), schools and CSA who work directly with children and families and are responsible for completion of CANS assessments.

For a full explanation of how to use the CANVaS 2.0 website, please refer to the *CANVaS 2.0 User Manual* which may be found in the CANVaS "Documents" folder on the CANVaS 2.0 website or in the CANS folder on the state Children's Services Act (CSA) website at <u>http://www.csa.virginia.gov/Cans/Index</u>.

For technical assistance with CANVaS 2.0, contact the CANVaS Help Desk at 1-877-727-8329 or by e-mail at <u>canvas@rcrtechnology.com</u>. The Help Desk is 'live" from 8:00 a.m.-5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday (excluding holidays).

The CANVaS 2.0 URL is <u>https://www.csa.canvas.virginia.gov</u> The site will be referred to as simply "CANVaS" in the remainder of this document.

## **FIRST STEPS!**

Anyone who administers the CANS must be currently certified on its use. To train and certify on the CANS for the first time, please see the <u>REVISED</u> New User Instructions to Access CANS SchooX Training and Certification Site.pdf to get started.

The CANS training site is hosted by the Praed Foundation and is a completely separate website from CANVaS. For technical assistance with the CANS training site, you must contact their site support online. You may click on the "Contact Us" link on the log in page or on the green "? Help" button on the lower right hand side of the screen after logging in, or you may directly e-mail site support at <a href="mailto:support@tcomtraining.com">support@tcomtraining.com</a> .

Print a copy of your certification(s) when you have completed the training and certification process.

For more information on CANS training and certification, please visit <u>CANS Training and Certification Site</u> or see the CANS folder on the state CSA website at <u>www.csa.virginia.gov/CANS</u>

## **NEW CANVaS USER ACCOUNT CREATION**

Once you have successfully certified on the CANS, the next step is to create a CANVaS account so you may complete the assessment online. If you are new to CANS and CANVaS, your Local Administrator (often referred to as the "DSU/RA" (Designated Super User/Report Administrator) will create an account profile for you in the CANVaS system. A list of Local Administrators (DSU/RAs) may be found on the state CSA website <u>DSU/RA List</u>. Or you may contact your local CSA office to find the appropriate person.

To request this account creation, you must complete and sign the "Request to Create or Reactivate a CANVaS Case Manager Account." Your supervisor's signature is also required on this form to confirm that access to CANVaS is required for you to carry out your job responsibilities.

The "Request to Create or Reactivate a Case Manager" account form is included at the end of this document. It may also be found in the CANVaS 2.0 "Documents" folder <u>or</u> on the state CSA website in the CANS folder at <u>http://www.csa.virginia.gov/Cans/Index</u> (CANVaS 2.0 Fact Sheets and Account Management).

Submit the completed and signed form as well as a copy of your CANS certification(s) to your local DSU/RA. If you work in multiple localities, you must submit a copy of the form to each locality's DSU/RA. You will only have one account however, with all your localities listed. Your account is initially created in one locality and then the additional localities may be added. If you or your DSU/RA need assistance with this process please contact the Office of Children's Services (OCS).

Your Local Administrator(s) will use the information you have provided to initiate creation of your account in CANVaS. You will receive an automated e-mail from the CANVaS Help Desk requesting that you click on a link to complete the process of account activation. The link will take you to the below page. If you do not receive the automated e-mail as expected, please check your spam folder or follow up with your DSU/RA or the CANVaS Help Desk.

	CANVaS 2.0 Commonwealth of Virginia
Home	
News	Login information
Documents	User Name
Log In	Password
	Login Forgot Password?

A log in page will appear.

Enter your user name and temporary password (found in the automated e-mail) and click on "Log-in" at the bottom of the page or "Enter."

ogin Information			
User Name	noname		
Password	•••••		
Login Forgot Password?			

You will be asked to create a new password and a secret question/answer. Please follow the on-screen prompts to do so.

You will then also be asked to agree to the CANVaS 2.0 User Agreement. You must read all of the terms of the agreement and check the box. You may also print the User Agreement. **Please be sure you understand your responsibilities regarding access and use of CANVaS. Access to CANVaS may be revoked at any time by the system administrator.** Failure to honor the User Agreement may result in loss of access to CANVaS.

Next, click "Activate Account" in the lower left-hand corner of the screen (next page).

Confirm Password				
	Please Greate a New	Secret Question and Answer		
Secret Question		"Secret Question is required.		
Secret Answer		"Secret Answer is required.		
	This form shall be re public agency (Depa Board Behavioni He employ (et) who wish This agreement shal employee's agreeme refer to the "Procedu http://www.csa.vigr	CANNAS 2.0 Individual Confidentiality and User Agreement ad and signed electronicality by an employee of any local intenti of Social Services, Cont Exercises Inti. Community Services allfh Authority, school district or a local Childeen's Services Act es to establish an account in CANNAS 2.0 for his/heigh banctions, es the requirement to maintian confidentiality and documents the int to abole by the system rules. For additional information, please mes for Access to CANNAS 2.0 for abole to load at tageohtmiiPdicies_and_Pricedures_for_Access_and_Use_of_CANNAS_Version_	~	
D By un	checking this box, the Us ler which access to CAN	ser requesting access achnowledges and agrees to the above conditions ViaS is granted. (Failure to check this boxwill terminate the request to create an account.) Open PDF (Deveload User Terms		
Activate Account	$\langle -$			
© 2013-2017. HCR Technology Corporation: All Rig Help Desk. 400-727-6020	hts Nesarved			RCR

You have now activated your account and may log in. Once logged in you will see this page.

	CANVaS 2.0 Commonwealth of Virginia
sound blue	My Locations
Home	Welcome Home
News	
Documents	
Log Out	Welcome to CANVaS 2.0!
	CANVaS 2.0 is the online application of the Virginia Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment, the mandatory uniform assessme and youth served by the Children's Services Act (CSA) (§2.2-5200 et. seq.). This site is intended solely for the use of authorized local public agency (de court services units, community services boards/behavioral health authority, school divisions and CSA) staff.
	For more information about the CANS and CSA, visit www.csa.virginia.gov or contact the Office of Children's Services at csa.office@csa.virginia.gov.

You may now access your account to complete all the necessary functions (e.g., search for children, create assessments, print assessments and other reports).

If you work in more than one locality, and all your localities have been added, do the following:

- Log in to CANVaS.
- You will notice on the upper left side of the screen a tab entitled "My Locations."
- Click on the tab to "Choose Location."
- Scroll down and click on the "bar" or line for the locality you wish to access.
- You may only access one location at a time.

	CANVaS 2.0 Commonwpalth of Virginia
sound blue	V My Localess
Home	Choose Location
Neve	Costration of the second s
Documents	
Log Out	Welcome to CANVaS 2.0! CANVaS 2.0 is the online application of the Virginia Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment, the mandatory uniform assessment required for all children and youth served by the Children's Services Act (CSA) (§2.2-5200 et. seq.). This site is intended solely for the use of authorized local public agency (department of social services, court services units, community services boards/behavioral health authority, school divisions and CSA) staff. For more information about the CANS and CSA, visit www.csa virginia.gov or contact the Office of Children's Services at csa office@csa.virginia.gov.
	6-2012-2019. IICH Testinskyy Coposition. At Hights Reserved. Help Desk. 877-727-6029

Mouse over the bar for the locality you wish to select and click on the bar. In the screenshot below, King William has been selected.

User Name	hith ouse			
Locations to choose from:				
LOCALITY	ROLE	START DATE	END DATE	
King William				
Richmond City	DSU/RA	12/06/2016	12/06/2017	
Appomatiox	DSU/RA	12/19/2016	12/19/2018	
Grayson	DSU/RA	01/18/2017	01/18/2023	

You may now search for children in CANVaS.

## **CHILD SEARCH**

The first step when taking any action related to a child is to search for the child in CANVaS. To locate a child whose information is already in CANVaS, click on the "Child" tab and then "Child Search" at the top of the page. You will search for a child by the child's unique identifier (SSN) and last name.

If you know the child has had previous CANS assessments, but you are unable to locate the child using the information you have, please contact the previous assessor if appropriate, or your local CSA office. Some localities do not use SSNs and create pseudo-numbers.

If you do not have or are unable to locate the account, please **DO NOT** create a pseudo-number on your own. Contact the CANVaS Help Desk at 1-877-727-8329. They will be able to find the child for you. Once you have located the child's account, click "Edit" on the child's profile page and then enter the correct number in the designated field.

**Note:** Sometimes users are in a hurry and create a pseudo-number on their own, especially for "new" children. This will *not* save time. For example, for a new child, you will be prompted to do an Initial assessment which is the Comprehensive version with the modules. Three months later, the next assessor tries to log in with the now correct number to enter a second assessment, but can't find the child's account, so that user creates a new account for the child and will have to complete another Initial assessment.

It's also easy to forget a "made up" number! If you realize a child has two or more accounts, please contact the Help Desk to merge the accounts using the correct information.

If the child is located, the name and other information will appear in a drop down.



If the child's name appears more than once on this page, it means the child has more than one account. Please stop and contact the CANVaS Help Desk to merge the accounts.

Otherwise, double-click on the bar with the child's name. If the child has an account, but is not in the locality you have logged into, **you can add the child to your locality**. Click on "Add Location" and then "Save."

Add	Location	for Pinl	k Peach
-----	----------	----------	---------

Complete the form. Make sure to enter all required fields.				
State	Virginia			
Locality *	Accomack 🔽			
User	Carol Wilson			
Start Date	04/02/2019			
End Date				
* - indicates required field				
Save Cancel				

## ADDING A NEW CHILD/CAREGIVERS

If this is a new referral, and you know the child has no assessments in CANVaS, you will create the child's profile page. <u>Always search for a child before creating a profile, even on new referrals</u>. Sometimes children have received services years ago, or in another locality. Or the child may have a hyphenated last name or have used just one surname of a hyphenated name. Or, the child's name may have a suffix, like "Jr".

Enter the child's last name and SSN (or pseudo-number used by your locality) and click "Search."

If the message "No child found" is received, click on "Add Child."

Child Search							
No Child found.							
	SSN * 001-0						
	Last Name * Peach						
Search	Add Child	Cancel					
No Records Fou	ind						

Please complete all of the items marked with an asterisk (\*) on the "Add Child" page. Be sure to select the "Referral Source" from the drop down box. For example, if the child is being referred from the local school district to CSA/FAPT, select "schools." Or if the child is being referred from the local Court Services Unit, select "DJJ". It is not necessary to click "Other" and then type in the name of the local agency or schools.

**NOTE**: This step is important as it will guide the type of assessment. For all children and families being served by the local DSS, please select "DSS."

Add Child						
Complete the form. Make sure to enter all required fields.						
First Name *		Referral Source *	select item			
Last Name *		Internal ID *				
Middle Name		Race *	-select item-			
Birth Date *		Gender *	-select item-			
SSN *		Ethnicity *	-select item-			
Medicaid ID						
* - indicates required field						
Save Cancel						

## Please be sure to select the correct "Referral Source."

Complete the form. Make sure to enter al	I required fields.			
First Name *		Referral Source *	select item DSS	
Last Name *		Internal ID *	DJJ Schools CSB	
Middle Name		Race *	Family Other	
Birth Date *		Gender *	-select item-	
SSN *		Ethnicity *	-select item-	
Medicaid ID				
* - indicates required field				
Save Cancel				
© 2012-2019. RCR Technology Corporation. All	Rights Reserved.			D 🖉 D

The "Internal ID" is the case managing agency's assigned number. For example, for a foster child this would be the child's OASIS number.

Select "Race" from the drop-down box. Remember Hispanic/Latino is an ethnicity (last field), not a race.

Select "Gender" (Female, Male or Unknown/Unspecified).

Select "Ethnicity" (Hispanic, Non-Hispanic).

lete the form. Make sure to enter all rec	quired fields.			
First Name *		Referral Source *	select item 💌	
Last Name *		Internal ID *		
Middle Name		Race *	African American	
Birth Date *		Gender *	Asian Native Hawaiian American Indian	
SSN*		Ethnicity *	Caucasian Other Biracial	
Medicaid ID				
cates required field				
Save Cancel				

Click "Save" in the lower left hand corner of the screen.

You will return to the child's main page as seen below. If at any point, changes need to be made to this information (e.g., birth date entered incorrectly) click "Edit", make the revisions, and then click "Save."

	Administration		Reporti							
ou have assessm ou have armual a	ents open more than 6 ssessments dueloverd	O days. Please close as op ue. Click here for details	en assesaments will be deleted	on the 75th day. Click he	ere for more details.					
lew Pink Pea	ich							To search type a	nd hit onlar	Search
	First Name	Pink		Referral Source	DSS					
	Last Name	Feach		DSS ID	234					
	Middle Name			Rece	Caucasian					
	Birth Date	01/01/2011		Gender	Female					
	SSN	1111		Ethnicity	Non Hispanic					
	Medicaid ID									
Add Child	Edit Add	Location Add Care	giver Add Assessment	Delete Ca	uncel					
Add Child ocations Carr	Edit Add	Location Add Careg	giver Add Assessment	Deleter Ca	incol					
Add Child Xations Cam SSESSMENT	Edit Add igners Assessment TOOL	REFERRAL SOURCE	Add Assessment ASSESSMENT REASON	Deleter Ca ASSESSMENT STATUS	LOCALITY	START DATE	OLOSED DATE	CLOSED BY	DISPLAY REPORT	DELETE
Add Child Kators Care SSESSMENT 14796	Edit Add givers Assessment TOOL CANS Comprehens 5+	Add Cang Add Cang REFERIAL SOURCE	Add Assessment ASRESSMENT REASON	Deleter Ca ASSESSMENT STATUS CLOSED	LOCALITY Locality A	START DATE 62/25/2019	CLOSED DATE 0225/2019	GLOSED BY Carol Wilson	DISPLAY REPORT Report	DELETE
Add Chiel scators Carr SSESSMENT 24786	Edit Add agners Assessments TOOL CANS Comprehens 5+ CANS Comprehens 5+	Add Cano Add Cano REFERRAL SOURCE We DSS	and Add Assessment Add Assessment ASSESSMENT REASON Initial Reassessment	Determine Cat ASSESSMENT STATUS CLOSED CLOSED	LOGALITY Locality A Locality A	START DATE 02/25/2019 07/19/2018	CLOSED DATE 02/25/2019 07/19/2010	CLOSED BY Carol Wilson Rej Nétryanandan	DISPLAY REPORT Report	DELETE

The next step is to add a caregiver or caregivers.

To list caregivers, click on the "Add Caregiver" tab. If the selected referral source is "DSS" up to three caregivers may be entered. If the referral source is anything other than "DSS" only one caregiver may be added.

Add Child Edit Add Location	Add Caregiver	Add Assessment	Delete	Cancel	
Locations Caregivers Assessments					
FIRST NAME	NAME			RELATION	SHIP

Click on "Add Caregiver." The only required fields are first name, last name and relationship which is a drop down box. Again, if the "Referral Source" selected is "DSS" then up to three caregivers may be entered.

First Name *			Zipcode		
Last Name *			Email		
Address 1			Phone		
Address 2			Relationship *	-soloci dum-	
City			Active	Sister Mother	
State *	Virginia	~		Father Uncle	
tates required field				Solip Parent(s) Foster Parent(s) Non-relative(s) Other Relative(s) Grandparent(s)	
Technology Corporation A	W Rights Reserved			(*	

Ensure that the box next to "Active" is checked. If not, click on that box.

Click "Save" and return to the "View Caregiver" page to confirm your changes. Then, select "Back to Child View" page.

To add another caregiver, select "Add Caregiver." On the Caregiver page enter the necessary information. The system will default to "Active." Click "Save" and "Return to Main Child Page."

## ADDING AN ASSESSMENT FOR ALL CHILDREN

If you have searched for a child and found the child in CANVaS, check (and edit if necessary) the child's information such as date of birth and referral source to make sure the information is accurate. Whether you have just located a child with a profile already in the system or you have newly created a child's profile, the next step is usually to add an assessment.

On the child's profile p	age, click on "Add Assessme	ent."	
Add Child Edit Add Loca	tion Add Caregiver Add Assessment		
Locations Caregivers Assessments			
FIRST NAME	LAST NAME	RELATIONSHIP	STATUS

## The following page will appear:

Assessment Date *	04/01/2019
	Note: Enter date assessment conducted.
Assessment Reason *	-select item-
Assessment Tool *	
Referral Source	DSS
Assessment Location *	-select item-
Certified Assessor *	-select assessment location and t
Assessment Mode *	-select above-

The first assessment for any new child is the Initial assessment. The system will default to the Initial for "Assessment Reason" and "Comprehensive" Birth to Four or 5+ (depending on the child's age as indicated by the DOB) for the Assessment Tool." The "Referral Source" will pre-populate. The 'Assessment Location" will default to the logged-in locality. The user's name will appear as the "Certified Assessor."

If the child already has an Initial assessment, you will have two choices, Reassessment or Discharge. For the reassessment, you may choose either the "Reassessment" version (without the modules) or the Comprehensive version (with the modules) depending on your local CANS policy. If you are rating a Discharge CANS, the system will select the "CANS Comprehensive". The referral source is prepopulated. The locality field will default to the locality into which you have logged. Enter the date the child's assessment was conducted. Your name should appear in the drop-down box for "Certified Assessor." Lastly, select the "Assessment Mode". The system will default to "Interview Mode", which

provides the question related to each item and limited information for each anchor definition. Case managers may select "Interview Mode" or "Rapid Entry Mode." Use "Interview Mode" until you are familiar with the items and their definitions.

Assessment Date *	04/01/2019	
	Note: Enter date assessment conducted.	
Assessment Reason *	Initial 🖌 Initi	ial
Assessment Tool *	CANS Comprehensive 5+	
Referral Source	DSS	
Assessment Location *	Locality A	$\checkmark$
Certified Assessor *	Carol Wilson 🕑 Car	rol Wilson
Assessment Mode *	Interview Mode	
Start Assessment Cancel		
	-	

**Note:** Please note that the items are defined more fully in the "*Item and Rating Definitions Manuals*" for each version. These manuals are located in the "Documents" folder in CANVaS and the CANS folder on the CSA website. (example, <u>DSS-Enhanced CANS Comprehensive Ages 5+</u>) Especially when first rating the CANS, having a copy of the "*Item and Ratings Definitions*" for reference will be very helpful in accurately rating an assessment.

Click "Start Assessment."

In "Interview Mode", the screen looks like the below.

ntry Mode: Interview Mode Status:	) for Anotl Open	her Pea	ach Re	eferral	Source: DSS	Assessment Rea
las the child received intensive community-based services in the las	t six months, an	d if so, we	ere these	e service	es successful?	
Child has not received community-based services.	,					
The child has received community-based services and t	he services were	e success	sful.			
The child has received community-based services and t	he services were	e not suce	cessful.			
comments						
Next Last						
e 1 of 64						
ave Assessment Save & Close Assessment Back to	Child View	Caregi	ver Asse	essmen	t	
		ourogn		Joomon		
"Panid Entry Mada" the screen looks li	ka thice					
	ke this:					
Rapid Entry Mode the screen looks in						
Rapid Entry Mode the screen looks in						
Kapiu Entry Mode the screen looks in						
entry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode Status: Ope	en		Reterra	al Sour	rce: DSS	Assessment Reason: Ir
ntry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode Status: Ope	en		Reterra	al Sour	rce: DSS	Assessment Reason: Ir
entry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode Status: Ope	en initions.)		Reterra	al Sour	rce: DSS	Assessment Reason: Ir
entry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode The Screen Hooks in Status: Ope General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def	en initions.) 0	1	Referra 2	al Sour	rce: DSS Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir
General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def	en initions.) 0	1	Referra 2	al Sour 3	rce: DSS Comments	Assessment Reason:  r
General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES	en initions.) 0 O	<b>1</b>	Referra 2 O	al Sour	rce: DSS Comments	Assessment Reason:  r
Ceneral Questions (Please answer according to anchor def INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES CHILD REMOVAL	en initions.) 0 0	<b>1</b> ○	Referra 2 O	al Sour	rce: DSS Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir
Ceneral Questions (Please answer according to anchor def INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES CHILD REMOVAL CHILD AGE	en initions.) O O O	<b>1</b> 〇 〇	Reterra 2 0	al Sour	rce: DSS Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir
General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES CHILD REMOVAL CHILD AGE CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home	en initions.) 0 0 0	<b>1</b> 0 0 0	2 O	al Sour	comments	Assessment Reason:  r
Control Contro	en initions.) 0 0 0 0	<b>1</b> 0 0 0	2 O	al Sour	Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir
Control Contro	en initions.) 0 0 0 0 0	<b>1</b> 0 0 0 0	2 O	al Sour	rce: DSS Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir
Intry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode       Status: Ope         General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def         INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES         CHILD REMOVAL         CHILD AGE         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Group Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Residential Treatment Center	en initions.) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	<b>1</b> 0 0 0 0 0 0	2 O	al Sour	Comments	Assessment Reason:  r
Intry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode       Status: Ope         General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def         INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES         CHILD REMOVAL         CHILD AGE         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Group Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Residential Treatment Center         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Family/Relation Home	en initions.) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	<b>1</b> 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	2 O	3	rce: DSS Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir
Intry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode       Status: Ope         General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def         INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES         CHILD REMOVAL         CHILD AGE         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Group Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Residential Treatment Center         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Family/Relation Home	en initions.) O O O O O O O O O O O O	<b>1</b> 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	2 O	al Sour	rce: DSS  Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir
Intry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode       Status: Ope         General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def         INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES         CHILD REMOVAL         CHILD AGE         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Group Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Residential Treatment Center         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Residential Treatment Center         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Family/Relation Home	en initions.) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1 () () () () () () () () () ()	Reterra 2 0	3 3	rce: DSS  Comments	Assessment Reason:  r
Intry Mode: Rapid Entry Mode       Status: Ope         General Questions (Please answer according to anchor def         INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES         CHILD REMOVAL         CHILD AGE         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Group Home         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Residential Treatment Center         CURRENT PLACEMENT - Family/Relation Home         Life Domain Functioning (0 = No Evidence of Problems; 1 =	en initions.) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 () () () () () () () () () ()	Reterra 2 O	3 3 = Sevu	rce: DSS  Comments	Assessment Reason: Ir

16

## **GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT RATING**

If you do not know how to rate the General Questions section, you may switch to "Interview Mode" to see the rating definitions or see the last page of this document (General Questions Section). Please read the item definitions carefully as these questions may factor into the algorithm recommendation for residential placement.

Select and click on the "bubble" for the appropriate rating for each item. A "Comments" box is provided if you wish to add any notes regarding this item. For example, if you rated a "0" or "1" on "Talents/Interests" you might want to write in the comments box what that specific talent or interest is (e.g., musical: singing, playing the guitar or artistic: drawing, drama, etc.) These comments will print on the assessment report.

#### **RATING MODULES**

The Virginia CANS includes eight "Child Functioning" Modules in the Comprehensive version of the CANS. If a "1" or higher is rated on a trigger item, the user is prompted to rate that module to gather more pertinent information to assist in the assessment. For example, if the "Runaway" item is rated a "1" or higher, the items in the module will prompt the collection of data about how often the child runs away, where the child goes, if someone else assists in the planning, etc.

If you are a DSS user, you must always rate the Trauma Module. If you are a non-DSS rater, you will only rate the Trauma Module on the Comprehensive version if the "Adjustment to Trauma" item is rated a "1" or higher. The Child Functioning Modules are not included in the Reassessment versions of the CANS.

All modules are open (displayed) under the trigger items. If you rate a "0" on the trigger item, the module items will collapse and you will not rate the module. If you rate a "1" or higher on the trigger item, you must complete the module.

ANGER CONTROL	0	0	0	0
SUBSTANCE USE	0	0	0	0
	0	0	~	
DURATION OF USE	0	0	0	
READINESS TO CHANGE	0	0	0	0
RECOVERY ENVIRONMENT	0	0	0	0
RELAPSE SKILLS	0	0	0	0
EATING DISTURBANCE	0	0	0	0

In the example below, the substance use module is open.

Child Risk Behaviors (0 = No Evidence of Problems; 1 = History, Watch/Prevent; 2 = Recent, Act; 3 = Acute, Act Immediately)

If there is no evidence or history of substance use, and the item is rated a "0", the Substance Use Module collapses and is no longer visible (as in the following screen shot.)

ANGER CONTROL	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
SUBSTANCE USE	۲	0	0	0	
EATING DISTURBANCE	0	0	0	0	
Child Risk Behaviors (0 = No Evidence of Problems; 1 = History,	Watch/Pi	revent; 2	e Rece	nt, Act;	3 = Acute, Act Immediately)
Child Risk Behaviors (0 = No Evidence of Problems; 1 = History,	Watch/Pi <mark>0</mark>	revent; 2 1	e Rece 2	nt, Act; <mark>3</mark>	3 = Acute, Act Immediately) Comments
Child Risk Behaviors (0 = No Evidence of Problems; 1 = History, • SUICIDE RISK	Watch/Pi 0	revent; 2 <b>1</b> 〇	2 = Rece 2	nt, Act; 3 O	3 = Acute, Act Immediately) Comments

If the Substance Use item is rated a "1" as indicated below or higher, additional information is gathered through the module questions. This specific information will assist in developing services or strategies to address this need.

SUBSTANCE USE	0	۲	0	0	
FREQUENCY OF USE	0	۲	0	0	
DURATION OF USE	0	۲	0	0	
READINESS TO CHANGE	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	۲	0	
RECOVERY ENVIRONMENT	0	0	۲	0	
RELAPSE SKILLS	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\overline{\bullet}$	$\bigcirc$	

When you reach the bottom of the page, click "Save and Close Assessment." You will be prompted to complete the "Caregiver Assessment."

INTENTIONAL MISBEHAVIOR	0	0	۲	0	
SEXUALLY REACTIVE BEHAVIOR	۲	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
BULLYING	۲	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	

Residential Treatment Center (Please answer according to ancho	or definitio	ons. Cor	nplete th	e next	seven items (RTC Module) ONLY if
	0	1	2	3	Comments
INVESTMENT IN PLACEMENT & TREATMENT	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
COMMUNITY OR OFF-SITE BEHAVIORS	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
HOME VISITS	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
CAREGIVER PARTICIPATION	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
CAREGIVER AND CHILD INTERACTIONS	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
PROGRESS TOWARD GOALS AND OBJECTIVES	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	
PREPARATION FOR DISCHARGE PLACEMENT	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	$\bigcirc$	

Save Assessment	Save & Close Assessment	Back to Child View	Caregiver Assessment

You will notice that the "Residential Treatment Module" follows the Child Risk Behaviors Domain at the end of the child's assessment. As noted, this module is only required if the child or youth is in residential treatment. Leave blank if not applicable.

## **RATING CAREGIVERS**

To add the Caregiver assessment, you must click "Add."

Caregiver	Assessment List for	or Pink Peach	
No Assessme	ents found. Click the Add	I button to attach Caregiver Assessments	
Add	Main Assessment	Back to Child View	
			19

The caregivers on the child's profile v	vill populate as a list.	
Active Caregiver Assessment List for Pink Peach		
CAREGIVER NAME	RELATIONSHIP	
Sally Sweet	Mother	Add
Susie Sour	Aunt	Add
Add Caregiver Main Assessment Back to Child View		

Click on the word "Add" by the name of the caregiver for whom you wish to enter an assessment.

If you are completing the DSS-Enhanced version, you will complete the "Caregiver Strengths and Needs Domain" as well as the "Child Welfare Module." Up to three caregivers may be individually rated. If you are rating using the Standard version, you will rate one caregiver.

## **IMPORTANT FOR DSS RATERS-HOW TO RATE CAREGIVERS**

The choice of three caregivers was added to CANVaS to encourage the use of concurrent planning. For example, a case manager may rate the mother from whom the child was removed, the father who lives separately and a grandparent who is willing to provide a relative placement. Or a prospective adoptive parent may be rated.

You will rate both the "Caregiver Strengths and Needs" Domain and the Child Welfare Module. **Apply** each item to the individual caregiver you are rating. For example, on "Condition of the Home" if you are rating the grandparent as a possible placement, assess the *grandparent's* home. For "Marital/Partner Violence in the Home" you are rating the *grandparent's* home, not the parent from whom the child was removed. Similarly, for "History of Maltreatment" you are rating the *grandparent's* history of maltreatment of this child. For "Criminal Behavior" you are rating the *grandparent's* criminal history and so on. The word "parent" is used in some of the items in the Child Welfare Module (Interview Mode") for brevity instead of repeatedly using "Parent/Guardian/Caregiver."

If an item does not apply at all to this particular caregiver rate a "0" on that item. For example, if the child is not in foster care, "Commitment to Reunification" would not apply to a caregiver.

## **IMPORTANT FOR ALL RATERS-RATING THE CORRECT CAREGIVER(S)**

Remember the assessment is intended to guide and evaluate service planning and provision. For example, if a child was removed from his mother's home and reunification is the goal, then the **mother** is rated as a Caregiver to document why she is unable to care for the child at the time of the assessment. Perhaps the mother has substance use needs and lost her housing which prompted her to neglect her child and inadequately provide supervision. It may be helpful to think about how these items would be rated if the child was still in the home. For example, has the mother found stable housing? If so, you

could rate this as a "1" and no longer an "actionable" need. If the mother is in substance abuse treatment you would to rate the substance use need as "actionable" (a "2" or "3") because the need is being actively addressed. The assessment should accurately rate the caregiver's strength and needs when the assessment is being done.

Local DSS or agency staff (e.g., foster care worker, probation officer) are <u>never</u> rated as a caregiver. Foster parents are not rated unless:

- they are pre-adoptive parents
- are the foster parents of a child for whom termination of parental rights was granted but no adoptive family has been identified, or
- are foster parents of an older youth who has no planned permanent caregiver.

If a child is in foster care, the purpose of the Caregiver Assessment is to determine the appropriateness of parents or caregivers for future care of the child. The assessment is a way to document whether or not it is realistic that a specific individual will be able to care for the child. The Caregiver Assessment can not only guide planning but can either support the need for continued foster care placement or provide documentation for the child's return home.

#### **RATING OLDER YOUTH**

There are a couple of options for rating the Caregiver Domain with older youth who do not have a "planned permanent caregiver." If the youth is in a foster home, group home or residential program, those caregivers should be rated in the Caregiver Strengths and Needs Domain. The "Child Welfare" Module should be rated all "0s." Another possibility is to rate the youth as his/her own potential caregiver. For example, how well can the youth self-supervise? Is the youth organized enough to remember appointments? Does the youth have physical or mental health needs? Or transportation needs? Again if this option is selected, the Child Welfare Module is rated all "0s".

## **CLOSING AN ASSESSMENT**

When you have completed the Caregiver Assessment, click "Save Assessment" then "Back to Main Assessment" at the bottom of the page. If the assessment is complete, scroll to the bottom of the page and click "Save and Close Assessment." If the caregiver assessment has not been rated, the system will prompt you to return to it. Click "Edit" to finish the assessment.

If an item anywhere in the assessment has not been rated, the system will notify you at the top of the screen in red font as shown below.

S Comprehensive 5+ Assessment #328954 for Pir / Mode: Rapid Entry Mode Status: Open	nk Pead	:h	Referra	al Soui	rce: DSS Assessment Reason: Reassesment
t all required questions have been answered in	the fo	ollowi	ng mo	dule:	Child Behavioral/Emotional Needs
General Questions (Please answer according to anchor definitions	s.)				
	0	1	2	3	Comments
INTENSIVE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES	$\bigcirc$	۲	$\bigcirc$		
CHILD REMOVAL	۲	$\bigcirc$			
CHILD AGE	۲	0	0		
CURRENT PLACEMENT - Foster Home	۲	$\circ$			
CURRENT PLACEMENT - Group Home	۲	$\circ$			

Complete the assessment and then "Save and Close Assessment."

When the assessment closes, the software will run the "residential" algorithm. The recommendation will be that either the child's needs *as indicated by the ratings* meet or do not meet the requirements for residential treatment.

The algorithm recommendation is based on a profile of the child's ratings on specific items. If the ratings "match" the algorithm profile, research indicates that the youth may benefit from residential treatment. However, a number of other factors must be considered by the FAPT in making such a decision and the algorithm recommendation is only one piece of information. There is no requirement to follow the algorithm recommendation for placement or funding, including Medicaid. It may, however, be used to support a decision to place or not to place a child into residential treatment.

Sometimes raters wonder why an assessment of a child with significant needs does not result in the residential recommendation. The most common reasons for not generating the residential recommendation result from raters not adhering to the <u>Six Key Principles</u> of rating the CANS, specifically not realizing that the need for action (services or interventions) trumps the 30 day time frame and rating a child "in services" instead of rating the child's needs. (see Six Key Principles link for explanation). The General Questions section must also be completed appropriately.

View Pink Peach				To search type
The assessment is CLOSED.Th	e child's assessment meets the	algorithm requirements for	residential treatment.	
First Name	Pink	Referral Source	DSS	
Last Name	Peach	DSS ID	234	
Middle Name		Race	Caucasian	
Birth Date	01/01/2011	Gender	Female	
SSN	1111	Ethnicity	Non Hispanic	

Assessments should always be closed when completed.

## **PRINTING AN ASSESSMENT REPORT**

To print a completed assessment, click on the "Assessments" tab on the "View Child Page."

Select the "Report" link for the assessment you wish to print.

Locations Care	givers Assessments									
ASSESSMENT #	TOOL	REFERRAL SOURCE	ASSESSMENT REASON	ASSESSMENT STATUS	LOCALITY	START DATE	CLOSED DATE	CLOSED BY	DISPLAY REPORT	DELETE
328954									Report	ζ_
324786	CANS Comprehensive 5+	DSS	Initial	CLOSED	Locality A	02/25/2019	02/25/2019	Carol Wilson	Report	

The first page of the report looks like this:

ssessment Detail Rep	ort					
1 of 6 🕨 🕅 💠 [	100% V Find	Next 💐 🔹 🚯 👘				
	Child As	sessment Detail F	Report	1 of 6		
Run Date: 6/3/2019 3:43	-47 PM CA	NS Comprehensive - 5+				
Run Date: 0.0.2010 0.40				Sector -		
Child: Pink Peach	A	ssessment Number: 3289	54	Status: CLOSED		
Information Detail		Case Ma	anager: Carol Wilson	n		
Referral Source: DSS			-			
DSS ID: 234						
Birthdate: 01/01/	2011					
Gender: Eoma	10	Case Man	ager Signature			
Conder. Pellia		Locality:	Locality A			
		Phone:	8046629817			
		Email:	carol.wilson@csa.v	/irginia.gov		
Assessment Detail		Asse	ssment Date: 4/2/2019	9 3:55:33 PM		
Assessment Number:	328954	Com	pletion Date: 4/2/201	9 4:23:00 PM		
Assessment Reason:	Reassessment	Assess	ment Status: CLOSEI	D		
Algorithm Results:	The assessment is closed. treatment	The child's assessment	meets the algorithm	requirements for res	idential	
Caregiver Solly Sweet		Relationship				
Sally Sweet		Mouler				

There are multiple pages which may be accessed by clicking the page number or the arrow in the upper left hand side of the screen.

To print the report, click on the print icon and select "PDF" from the drop-down choices.



The system will ask if you want to open or save the document. To print, select "Open". You may then print from your browser.

#### REPORTS

Case managers who have entered at least one assessment for a child may access the "Individual Progress Report" (IPR) which compares ratings on the last two reassessments with the Initial CANS completed for a child. For more information on this easy way to track progress, see the <u>CANVaS 2.0</u> Individual Progress Report article in the Spring 2017 edition of the OCS Newsletter.

Similarly, there is a "Permanency Report" which provides a snapshot of ratings on caregiver assessments over time. The ratings are organized by Protective Factors and provide a summary of progress to assist in service planning.

For more information about CANVaS reports, please see the **CANVaS 2.0 Reports Manual**, which is located in the "Documents" folder in CANVaS and in the CANS folder on the state CSA website at <u>http://www.csa.virginia.gov/Cans/Index</u>

## **OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION**

#### What to do if you leave or transfer employment:

As noted in the User Agreement, when you leave employment as a case manager you must let your Local Administrator or CSA office know that you no longer need access to CANVaS. Even if you are moving to another agency in the same locality or moving to another locality where you will still be responsible for administering CANS, your CANVaS account should be inactivated and an end date added on the "Location" list.

When you are employed in your new agency or locality, you must complete the "Request to Create or Reactivate a Case Manager Account" form (found at the end of this document, or in the CANVaS Documents folder and on the CSA website at <u>www.csa.virginia.gov/CANS</u>) and have it signed by your new supervisor. Access to CANVaS is based on your need to complete the specific job responsibilities of a particular position, so only your current employer can vouch that access is needed to fulfill your current job functions.

All identifying information such as names of children and other information such as item ratings is fictitious. This document is a basic outline for CANVaS users to log in and complete assessments. For a full explanation of how to use the CANVaS 2.0 website, please refer to the CANVaS 2.0 User Manual. For assistance contact the CANVaS Help Desk at 1-877-727-8329 or by e-mail at canvas@rcrtechnology.com

*Office of Children's Services June 2019* 

## **GENERAL QUESTIONS SECTION IN CANVAS 2.0**

The first section, entitled "General Questions" must be completed. These questions and options for rating may also be viewed in "Interview Mode." The questions and rating definitions are:

- 1. Has the child received intensive community based services in the past six months, and if so, were those services successful?
  - o "0" Child has not received community-based services.
  - o "1" Child has received community-based services and the services were successful.
  - "2" Child has received community-based services and the services were not successful.
- 2. Has the decision been made by DSS (Department of Social Services) or the J&DR (Juvenile and Domestic Relations) court to currently remove the child from home?
  - "0" No, a decision has not been made.
  - "1" Yes, a decision has been made.
- 3. Child's Age
  - $\circ$  "0" The child is ages 5-13.
  - "1" The child is ages 14-17.
  - $\circ$  "2" The child is age 18 or older.
- 4. Child's Placement (Rate "0" for NO and "1" for YES.) Rate the child's primary placement.

Foster Home: Is the child currently placed in a foster home?

- $\circ$  "0" No, the child spends no time in a foster home.
- o "1" Yes, the child spends at least some time in a foster home.

Group Home: Is the child currently placed in a group home?

- "0" No, the child spends no time in a group home.
- "1" Yes, the child spends at least some time in a group home.

Residential Treatment Center: Is the child currently placed in a residential treatment center?

- "0" No, the child spends no time in a residential treatment center.
- o "1" Yes, the child spends at least some time in a residential treatment center.

Family/Relation Home: Is the child currently placed with family or relative?

- "0" No, the child spends no time in a family or relative's home.
- o "1" Yes, the child spends at least some time in a family or relative's home.

# **Request to Create or Reactivate a New Case Manager Account**

## CANVaS 2.0

CANVaS 2.0 is the online software for the Virginia Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) assessment. CANS is required for all children and youth receiving services funded through the Children's Services Act (CSA) and all children in foster care. Users are required to read and acknowledge acceptance of the requirements of the online user agreement.

If you are a case manager for the local department of social services, court services unit, community services board/behavioral health authority, schools or CSA who completes CANS for children on your caseload, please provide your Local Administrator with the following information to create your CANVaS access. Only public agency case managers, not private providers, may establish CANVaS accounts.

Your Local Administrator's contact information may be found at <u>http://www.csa.virginia.gov/rosters</u> Complete and submit this form to your Local Administrator to establish an account. Local Administrators are often referred to as Designated Super Users/Report Administrators (DSU/RAs).

Name		
Job Title		
Agency		
E-mail Address		
Phone Number		
User's Signature	Date:	
Requested User Name		
Location(s) for which access is needed		
Signature of Agency Supervisor*	Date:	
*The signature of the supervisor is required to confirm t access to carry out his or her iob responsibilities.	hat the case manager requesting access t	o CANVaS 2.0 requires s

## **REQUIRED INFORMATION**

#### Printed Name of Agency Supervisor

Send this information, along with a <u>copy of your current CANS certification</u> to your Local Administrator. Your DSU/RA (Local Administrator) will create an account for you which will generate an e-mail being sent to you with a temporary password. Upon your first log- in to the system, you will be asked to create a secret question and answer as well as a new password. Passwords must be updated every ninety days.

If you do not receive the e-mail, contact your Local Administrator. For other access issues, you may contact the CANVaS Help Desk at 1-877-727-8329 or by e-mail at <u>canvas@rcrtechnology.com</u> (Do not e-mail child specific information.) Or you may contact the Office of Children's Services at (804) 662-9815.